# Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida)

**Annual Financial Statements September 30, 2024** 

### PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida)

#### **SEPTEMBER 30, 2024**

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4
Basic Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position and Governmental Fund Balance Sheet	8
Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances	9
Notes to Basic Financial Statements	10
Required Supplementary Information	
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget Actual	17
Compliance Section  Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	19
Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes	21
Independent Auditors' Management Letter Required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida Office of the Auditor General	22
Independent Auditors' Examination Report	25



#### Certified Public Accountants

219-B Avenue E • Apalachicola, FL 32320 Phone (706)442-3084 ben@vancecpa.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors and Executive Director Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency City of Port St. Joe, Florida

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, and general fund of the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CRA's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, of the CRA, as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the CRA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the CRA's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

#### Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards*, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the CRA's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedule, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated January 5, 2025, on our consideration of the CRA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering CRA's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Vance CPa LLC

Apalachicola, Florida January 5, 2025 **Vance CPA LLC** 

## PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the report presents our discussion and analysis of the performance of the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA") during the year ended September 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the CRA's financial statements, which follow this section.

#### **Financial Highlights**

- The assets of the CRA exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by \$401,922 (net position). The entire net position is included in the restricted category.
- The CRA's total net position increased by \$58,174 over the course of this year's operation primarily caused by budgeted spending in redevelopment programs.

#### **Overview of the Financial Statements**

The financial section of this annual report consists of two parts: (1) management's discussion and analysis (this section), and (2) the basic financial statements.

#### **Basic Financial Statements**

Government-wide financial statements. The focus of the government-wide financial statements is on the overall financial position and activities of the CRA. Reporting is similar to that of a private-sector business. The government-wide financial statements report information about the CRA as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer questions about the financial health of the CRA and whether the activities of the year contributed positively or negatively to that health.

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and statement of activities.

• The *Statement of Net Position* presents information on the assets held and liabilities owed by the CRA, both long- and short-term. Assets are reported when acquired and liabilities are reported when they are incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows to acquire these assets or liquidate such liabilities.

The difference between the CRA's total assets and total liabilities is *net position*. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the CRA is improving or deteriorating. Although the purpose of the CRA is not to accumulate net position in general, as this amount increases, it indicates that the financial position of the CRA is improving over time.

• The *Statement of Activities* presents the revenues and expenses of the CRA. The items presented on the statement of activities are measured in a manner like the approach used in the private sector in that revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are reported when incurred. Accordingly, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for several months after the end of the accounting period and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current period.

## PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the CRA that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities). The governmental activities of the CRA are mainly economic environment activities.

*Fund financial statements*. The focus of fund financial statements is directed to specific activities of the CRA. The CRA, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental fund. The CRA has only one governmental fund, a General Fund. Financial statements consist of a balance sheet and a statement of revenue, expenditures, and change in fund balance. These statements are prepared on an accounting basis that is significantly different from that used to prepare the government-wide financial statements.

In general, these financial statements have a short-term emphasis and, for the most part, measure and account for cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash. For example, amounts reported on the balance sheet include items such as cash and receivables but do not include capital assets such as land and buildings. The difference between a fund's total assets and total liabilities is the fund balance, and generally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activities. The operating statement for governmental funds reports only those revenues that were collected during the current period or very shortly after the end of the year. Expenditures are generally recorded when incurred.

For the most part, the balances and activities accounted for in governmental funds are also reported in the governmental activities columns of the government-wide financial statements. However, because different accounting bases are used to prepare governmental fund financial statements and government-wide financial statements, there are often significant differences between the totals presented. For this reason, there is an analysis after the governmental fund balance sheet that reconciles the total fund balance for the governmental fund to the amount of net position presented in the governmental activities column on the statement of net position. Also, there is an analysis after the statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance that reconciles the total change in fund balance for the General Fund to the change in net position as reported in the governmental activities column in the statement of activities.

*Notes to the basic financial statements*. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

#### PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### **Government-Wide Financial Analysis**

The table below presents a summary of net position as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, derived from the government-wide statement of net position:

#### **Statement of Net Position**

	2024	2023	<b>Change</b>	
Current Assets Capital Assets Total Assets	\$ 177,438 224,484 401,922	\$ 112,438	\$ 65,000 \(\frac{(10,376)}{ <b>54,624}</b> \)	
Long-term Liabilities Other Liabilities Total Liabilities		1,775 1,775	1,775 	
Restricted	401,922	345,523	56,399	
<b>Total Net Position</b>	<u>\$ 401,922</u>	<u>\$ 345,523</u>	<u>\$ 56,399</u>	

As noted earlier, net position may serve, over time, as a useful indication of the CRA's financial position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, the CRA's assets exceeded its liabilities by \$401,922. The entire net position of the CRA is restricted for Community Redevelopment.

The table below presents a summary of changes in net position for the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, as derived from the government-wide statement of activities:

#### **Statement of Activities**

		2024	 2023	_(	Change
Revenues					
Property Tax Assessments	\$	26,096	\$ 22,936	\$	3,160
Intergovernmental		45,182	41,615		3,567
Investment Income and miscellaneous		8,894	679		8,215
Total Revenues		80,172	 65,230		14,942
Expenses					
Economic Environment		(21,998)	(16,057)		(5,941)
Total Expenses		(21,998)	(16,057)		(5,941)
Change in Net Position		58,174	49,173		9,001
Beginning Net Position		343,748	 296,350		47,398
Ending Net Position	<u>\$</u>	401,922	\$ 345,523	<u>\$</u>	56,399

## PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### **Governmental activities**

Governmental activities increased the CRA's net position by \$58,174, while in 2023 there was an increase of \$49,173. This was primarily caused by a reduction in economic environment spending.

#### Financial Analysis of the CRA General Fund

As noted earlier, the CRA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the CRA's *General Fund* is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of *spendable* resources. Such information is useful in assessing the CRA's financing requirements. In particular, the *fund balance* at year-end provides the resources available for spending.

#### **Budgetary Highlights**

There was no difference between the CRA's original budget and the final budget. During the fiscal year, the CRA budget included \$\text{\theta}\$ related to downtown improvements and façade grants.

#### **Capital Assets**

The CRA's investment in fixed assets for its governmental activities as of September 30, 2024 amounts to \$224,484 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes improvements.

#### **Economic Factors and Next Year Budget and Rates**

In September 2024 the CRA Board and City Council approved a 2025 budget similar to the 2024 budget. Expenditures are budgeted for economic environment costs.

#### **Request for Information**

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida's finances for those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to City of Port St. Joe, P. O. Box 278, Port St. Joe, Florida 32457.

#### PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

### STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

		General		Adjustmen		Statement
ASSETS		Fund	_	(Note 7)	01	Net Position
Current Assets Cash and cash equivalents	\$	177,438	\$	_	\$	177,438
Capital assets: Depreciable, net				224,484		224,484
Total Assets		177,438		224,484		401,922
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION Fund balances:						
Restricted for community redevelopment		177,438	_	(177,438)		
<b>Total Fund Balances</b>		177,438		(177,438)	_	<u> </u>
<b>Total Liabilities and Fund Balances</b>	<u>\$</u>	177,438				
NET POSITION						
Investment in capital assets Restricted for: Community Redevelopment				224,484 177,438	_	224,484 177,438
<b>Total Net position</b>			\$	401,922	\$	401,922

## PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

## STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

		General Fund		Adjustmen (Note 7)	t Statement of Net Position	
REVENUES Property taxes Intergovernmental revenue - tax increment financing Investment income		26,096 45,182 7,119	\$	1,775	\$	26,096 45,182 8,894
<b>Total Revenues</b>		78,397		1,775	80,172	
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES Economic Environment Depreciation		11,622		10,376		11,622 10,376
Total Expenditures		11,622		10,376		21,998
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures		66,775		(8,601)		58,174
Net change in fund balances /Net position		66,775		(8,601)		58,174
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION Beginning of the year		110,663		233,085		343,748
End of the year	<u>\$</u>	177,438	\$	224,484	<u>\$</u>	401,922

#### NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA") is governed by a board consisting of five commissioners who are the same individuals as those serving as the City of Port St. Joe (the "City") City Council. The terms of office of the commissioners are concurrent with the terms of the Mayor and the members of the City Council Chair and Vice-Chair are designated by a majority vote of the City Council. The CRA was created in 1999 by Resolutions 198, as adopted by the City Council on January 5, 1999, in accordance with Section 163.356 of the *Florida Statutes*. The boundaries of the CRA district were determined at the time it was created and are shown on the CRA District Map.

Florida State Statute Chapter 163 allows a community redevelopment agency to be created for one or more of the following purposes: the elimination and prevention of blight; the reduction or prevention of crime; the provision of affordable housing; or the rehabilitation and revitalization of coastal resort and tourist areas that are deteriorating and economically distressed. The primary goal of the CRA is to provide a tool that will guide private and public initiatives for creating economic development, improved physical characteristics, encourage investment in Downtown Port St. Joe, improve the quality of life for residents, and establish a framework for the proper evolution of the CRA District.

The CRA is a separate entity from the City. However, the City Council of the City of Port St. Joe serves as the CRA Board and performs the legislative functions, governing duties and corporate responsibilities of the agency. The Finance Officer serves as the executive director of the agency, performs the administrative duties and oversees the day to day operations of the agency.

#### **B.** Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The CRA has only governmental activities and only one function, and, as such, it is eligible for special-purpose financial statement presentation; accordingly, the government-wide financial statements are presented together with the governmental fund financial statements, described below, with an adjustment column presented to reconcile the two sets of statements.

#### C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Governmental Fund Financial Statements – The CRA has one governmental fund type, which is the General Fund. The General Fund is the primary operating fund used to account for all resources and operations. Governmental funds are accounted for one a "spending" or "financial flow" measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current position.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the *economic resources measurement* focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.

#### **NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)**

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the *current financial resources measurement focus* and the *modified accrual basis of accounting*. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the CRA considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 65 days of the end of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred.

Property taxes associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period and are recognized as revenue when the amount is received within the availability period which is limited to 60 days after the end of the fiscal year.

#### D. Deposits

The CRA considers cash on hand, cash with fiscal agents, and overnight investments with original maturities of less than three months to be cash and cash equivalents. The CRA also maintains its own bank account which is used for the majority of CRA transactions.

#### E. Receivables

Receivables consist of trade receivables and amounts due from other governments and are recorded net of any allowance for uncollectible amounts, if applicable.

#### F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include improvement are reported in the applicable governmental activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.

Property, plant, and equipment with initial individual costs that exceed \$5,000 and estimated useful lives in excess of one year are recorded as capital assets. Infrastructure such as roads, bridges and sidewalks are capitalized when their initial costs exceed \$10,000 and possess estimated useful lives in excess of one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost whether purchases or constructed or estimated cost if historical cost is unknown. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repair that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Depreciation is recorded on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets generally as follows:

Furniture, equipment, machinery and vehicles

3-20 Years

#### **NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)**

#### **G.** Long-Term Obligations

There are no long-term debt obligations reported by the CRA as of September 30, 2024.

#### H. Fund Balance/Net Position

In fund financial statements, the General Fund reports fund classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the CRA is bound to honor constraints imposed on the use of resources reported. Amounts that are restricted to specific purposes either by: (a) constraints placed on the use of resources by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation are classified as restricted fund balances. Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the Board of Directors through a resolution are classified as committed fund balances. These constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same manner employed to commit those resources by resolution. Amounts that are constrained by the CRA's intent to be used for specific purposes, however, are neither restricted, nor committed are classified as assigned fund balances. Assignments are approved by the Executive Director.

Non-spendable fund balances include amounts that cannot be spent because they are either: (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Unassigned fund balance represents an amount that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for use, it is the CRA's policy to use restricted fund balance first, then unrestricted fund balance. Furthermore, committed fund balances are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used.

Net position of the government-wide financial statements are categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted or unrestricted. The first category represents capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, less outstanding debt related to the acquisition or construction of the capital assets.

The restricted category, if any, represents the balance of assets restricted by requirements of revenue bonds and other externally imposed constraints or by legislation. Unrestricted net position represents resources that are available for spending.

#### I. Budgetary Data

On or before September 1 each year, the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1. A public hearing is conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. Annual budgets are adopted for the General Fund on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All annual appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year for these funds.

#### **NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)**

Budgetary control is maintained at the department level. The CRA Manager is permitted to transfer appropriations between line items within the General Fund. All other types of budget transfers or amendments must be approved by the City Council. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level.

#### J. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### **NOTE 2 – TAX INCREMENT REVENUE**

The primary source of revenue is tax increment funds received through the City of Port St. Joe and Gulf County. The revenue from the City is treated as property taxes, while the remainder is recorded as intergovernmental revenue – tax increment financing.

#### **NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS**

At September 30, 2024, the bank balances, net of reconciling items, of the CRA's deposits were \$177,438. All of the CRA's public deposits are held in qualified public depositories pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act. Under the Act, all qualified public depositories are required to pledge eligible collateral having a market value equal to or greater than the average daily or monthly balance of all public deposits, times the depository's collateral pledging level.

The pledging level may vary depending upon the depository's financial condition and establishment period. All collateral must be deposited with an approved financial institution. Any losses to public depositors are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of securities pledged as collateral and, if necessary, assessments against other qualified public depositories of the same type as the depository in default. When public deposits are made in accordance with Chapter 280, no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof.

#### **NOTE 4- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES**

The CRA sometimes receives revenues from various federal grants. These grants would be for specific purposes and would be subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could result in disallowed expenditures under the terms of the grants. No such grants were received during the year ended September 30, 2024. Based upon prior experience, CRA management believes such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

#### **NOTE 5- RISK MANAGEMENT**

The CRA is exposed to various risks of loss, including general liability, personal injury, workers compensation, and errors and omissions. To manage its risks, the CRA has purchased commercial insurance.

#### **NOTE 6 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS**

The CRA has evaluated all subsequent events through January 5, 2025, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

### NOTE 7 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adjustments were made to include capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) on the statement of net position. This resulted in a net difference between the ending General Fund balances and the total net position of \$401,922.

Total fund balance	\$ 177,438
Capital assets, net	 224,484
Total net position	\$ 401,922

Adjustments were made to include depreciation expense and eliminate capital outlay expenditures, if any, on the statement of activities. This resulted in a net difference between excess revenues over expenditures" and change in net position of \$58,174.

Excess of revenues over expenditures	\$ 68,550
Less: depreciation expense	 (10,376)
Change in net position	\$ 58,174

#### **NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS**

The following is a summary of changes in the CRA's capital assets during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024:

Governmental Activities	Balance 10/01/2023		Additions and Transfers		Deletions and <u>Transfers</u>			Balance /30/2024
Capital assets being depreciated Improvements	\$	380,124	<u>\$</u>		\$	_=	<u>\$</u>	380,124
Less Accumulated		(145,264)		(10,376)				(155,640)
Total capital assets being depreciated		234,860		(10,376)	-			224,484
Total capital assets	<u>\$</u>	234,860	\$	(10,376)	\$		\$	224,484

Depreciation expense amounted to \$10,376 during fiscal year 2024, which is included on the statement of activities.



## PORT ST. JOE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Port St. Joe, Florida) YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

### SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET TO ACTUAL

	_	Budget A Original	unts Final	Actual Amounts					nce with Final dget Positive (Negative)
Revenues: Property taxes Intergovernmental — Tax increment financing Investment earnings and other	\$	26,096 45,051	\$	26,096 45,051	\$	26,096 45,182 7,119	\$	131 7,119	
<b>Total revenues</b>		71,147		71,147		78,397		7,250	
Expenditures: Current Economic environment		35,820		35,820		11,622		24,198	
<b>Total expenditures</b>		35,820		35,820		11,622		24,198	
Net change in fund balance		35,327		35,327		66,775		31,448	
Fund balance - beginning		110,663		110,663		110,663		<u> </u>	
Fund balance - ending	<u>\$</u>	145,990	<u>\$</u>	145,990	<u>\$</u>	177,438	<u>\$</u>	31,448	



### Vance CPA LLC

#### Certified Public Accountants

219-B Avenue E • Apalachicola, FL 32320 Phone (706)278-1221 Fax (800)-532-1015 ben@vancecpa.com

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors and Executive Director Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency City of Port St. Joe, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, and major fund, of the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency, (the "CRA"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CRA's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 5, 2025.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the CRA's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CRA's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Pursuant to provisions for Chapter 10.550, *Rules of the Auditor General*, we reported certain matters to management of the CRA in a separate management letter and Independent Auditor's Report dated January 5, 2025.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Vance CPA LLC

Vanca CPQ LLC

Apalachicola, Florida January 5, 2025

### Vance CPA LLC

#### Certified Public Accountants

219-B Avenue E • Apalachicola, FL 32320 Phone (706)278-1221 Fax (800)-532-1015 ben@vancecpa.com

### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INVESTMENT COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES

Board of Directors and Executive Director Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency City of Port St. Joe, Florida

We have examined Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency's, (the "CRA"), compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 2024, as required by Section 10.556(10)(a) *Rules of the Auditor General*.

Management is responsible for the CRA's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the CRA's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the CRA's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the CRA complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2024.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City and the Auditor General, State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

**Vance CPA LLC** 

Vance CPa LLC

Apalachicola, Florida January 5, 2025



#### Certified Public Accountants

219-B Avenue E • Apalachicola, FL 32320 Phone (706)278-1221 Fax (800)-532-1015 ben@vancecpa.com

### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Board of Directors and Executive Director Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency City of Port St. Joe, Florida

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency (the CRA), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated January 5, 2025.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General.

#### **Other Reporting Requirements**

We have issued our Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*; and Independent Accountants' Report on an examination conducted in accordance with *AICPA Professional Standards*, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports, which are dated January 5, 2025, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

#### **Prior Audit Findings:**

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. There were no prior findings and recommendations in the preceding audit report.

#### Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority for the CRA is disclosed in Note 1 of the basic financial statements.

#### **Financial Condition and Management**

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the CRA has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific conditions met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the CRA, did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the CRA. It is management's responsibility to monitor the CRA's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we had no such recommendations.

#### **Special District Component Units**

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district component units; therefore, we did not note any such component units that failed to provide the necessary information, nor is any specific special district information required to be reported.

#### **Specific Special District Information**

The required reporting items in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes for the CRA have been reported in the separately-issued audited financial statements of the CRA.

The following items have been provided to us to comply with state reporting requirements and have not been audited by us. We did not audit the following information within this section, nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or the completeness of the information provided by management. We do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on this data.

As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the Auditor General, the CRA reported the following unaudited data:

- a) The total number of district employees compensated in the last pay period of the district's fiscal year: -0-.
- b) The total number of independent contractors to whom nonemployee compensation was paid in the last month of the district's fiscal year: -0-.
- c) All compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency: \$-0-.
- d) All compensation earned by or awarded to nonemployee independent contractors, whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency: \$-0-.
- e) Each construction project with a total cost of at least \$65,000 approved by the district that is scheduled to begin on or after October 1 of the fiscal year being reported, together with the total expenditures for such project as:
  - a. None
- f) A budget variance based on the budget adopted under Section 189.016(4), Florida Statutes, before the beginning of the fiscal year being reported if the district amends a final adopted budget under Section 189.016(6), Florida Statutes, as follows: no amendments to original budget.

#### **Additional Matters**

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

#### **Purpose of this Letter**

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the CRA's governing board and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

**Vance CPA LLC** 

Vance CPa LLC

Apalachicola, Florida January 5, 2025

### Vance CPA LLC

#### Certified Public Accountants

219-B Avenue E • Apalachicola, FL 32320 Phone (706)278-1221 Fax (800)-532-1015 ben@vancecpa.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' EXAMINATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Executive Director Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency City of Port St. Joe, Florida

We have examined the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency 's (the CRA) compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, *Local Government Investment Policies*, and Sections 163.387(6) and (7), Florida Statutes, *Redevelopment Trust Fund* (collectively, the "Statutes"), for the year ended September 30, 2024. Management is responsible for the CRA's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the CRA's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the CRA complied with the Statutes, for the year ended September 30, 2024, in all material respects. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the CRA's compliance with those requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of risks of material noncompliance with those requirements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to the examination engagement.

In our opinion, the Port St. Joe Community Redevelopment Agency complied, in all material respects, with the Statutes for the year ended September 30, 2024.

**Vance CPA LLC** 

Vance CPa LLC

January 5, 2025 Apalachicola, Florida